
STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
Venue: Town Hall, Moorgate 

Street, Rotherham.  S60  
2TH 

Date: Thursday, 10 November 
2011 

  Time: 2.00 p.m. 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

 
1. To determine if the following matters are to be considered under the categories 

suggested, in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972.  
  

 
2. To determine any item which the Chairman is of the opinion should be 

considered as a matter of urgency.  
  

 
3. Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 8th September, 2011 (herewith) 

(Pages 1 - 4) 
  

 
4. Standards Committee Terms of Reference (report herewith) (Pages 5 - 14) 
  

 
5. Voluntary Code of Conduct (report herewith) (Pages 15 - 35) 
  

 
6. Bribery Act 2010 (report herewith) (Pages 36 - 40) 
  

 

 



STANDARDS COMMITTEE - 08/09/11 8B 
 

 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
8th September, 2011 

 
Present:-  Mrs. A. Bingham (in the Chair); Councillors Buckley, Gilding and Hughes; Mr. P. 
Edler, Mr. D. Foster, Dr. G. Musson and Mr. N. Sykes and Councillors P. Blanksby and D. 
Rowley (Parish Councils’ Representatives) 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Middleton, Mr. M. Andrew and 
Mr. I. Daines and Ms. J. Porter. 
 
B7 MINUTES  

 
 Resolved:- That the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 9th June, 

2011 be approved as a correct record, subject to an amendment to Minute 
No. B3, Paragraph 3, to insert the two words “and amended” before the words 
“at the meeting”. 
 

B8 ANNUAL REPORT  

 
 Further to Minute No. B3 of the meeting of the  Committee held on 9th June, 

2011, consideration was given to the revised draft annual report presented by 
Richard Waller, Senior Manager, Legal and Electoral Services, which had been 
amended in light of Members’ comments. 
 
The Committee was happy with the content, but suggested a few further 
amendments to correct errors and updates to Dr. G. Musson’s and Parish 
Councillor D. Rowley’s pen portraits. 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the amended draft report be received and the changes as 
suggested be approved. 
 
(2)  That the report be referred to full Council for adoption. 
 

B9 PARISH COMPACT/QUESTIONNAIRE  
 

 Further to Minute No. B4 of the meeting of the Committee held on 9th June, 
2011, Richard Waller, Senior Manager, Legal and Electoral Services, 
introduced the Standards for England template Parish Compact and the 
questionnaire devised by the working group under the chairmanship of the 
Vice-Chair.  The questionnaire had been circulated to Parish Councils earlier in 
the year.   
 
The objective of the Parish Compact was to facilitate closer working between 
Parish Councils and the Committee, in particular through joint working and 
training arrangements.   
 
The Committee was mindful of the uncertainties around the Localism Bill and 
the difficulties of enthusing Town and Parish Councillors.  To stimulate interest, 
the Vice-Chair of the Committee undertook to draft a letter for the Committee’s 
consideration with a view to circulating the agreed draft to Parish Councils 
informing them that the Parish Compact was being reconsidered.   
 
 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



9B  STANDARDS COMMITTEE - 08/09/11 
  

 

 

The Committee considered the draft letter and was minded to remove the 
wording in italics, preferring Parish Councils to make contact rather than 
offering meetings. 
 
Resolved:-  That the text of the draft letter be approved, subject to the removal 
of the words in italics, and the Senior Manager, Legal and Electoral Services, be 
authorised to circulate it to all Parish Councils. 
 

B10 LOCALISM BILL AND THE FUTURE OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE  
 

 Further to Minute No. 38 of the meeting of the Committee held on 14th April, 
2011, consideration was given to a report presented by Richard Waller, Senior 
Manager, Legal and Electoral Services, which referred to the Localism Bill 
receiving its third reading in the Lords on the 5th September, 2011 following 
which it would return to the House of Commons for consideration of any 
amendments made to the Bill by the Lords.  The provisions of the Bill 
concerned with the standards regime (Chapter 5 (standards) and Schedule 4 
(conduct of local government members) have so far remained unchanged.  It 
was, therefore, likely that these provisions would become law in their current 
form.   
 
Further information was provided on Chapter 5 and the duty placed upon 
certain authorities and Town and Parish Councils to promote and maintain high 
standards of conduct by members and co-opted members of the authority 
(Clause 16 of the Bill).    
 
At its meeting on the 14th April, 2011, the Committee identified a number of 
issues to be addressed were the Council minded to adopt a voluntary code of 
conduct overseen by a Standards Committee and the Committee was also 
invited to submit their views on the Standard Committee’s future.   

 
The Committee also noted that the Director of Legal Services at Sheffield City 
Council recently circulated an e-mail to the Monitoring Officers of Barnsley and 
Doncaster Councils and the Council advocating a shared standards regime.  
Drafts of Sheffield’s proposed Standards Protocol and draft procedure for 
dealing with allegations of breach of the Sheffield Code of Conduct were set out 
in detail as part of the report. 
 
It was suggested that the issues be explored over the next few months with a 
view to proposing to the Cabinet and the Council an appropriate standards 
regime and voluntary code of conduct once the Localism Bill had become law.   
 
The Committee sought clarification on the regulations and the sanctions that 
could be imposed. 
 
Discussion ensued on the shared arrangement which would invariably result in 
members of the Standards Committees of the four Local Authorities having to 
comply with a uniform standard of code and could lead to concerns over a lack 
of knowledge and independent view. 
 
The Committee was mindful of the changing environment, the need for more 
prescriptive Terms of Reference and how the complaint workload would 
change, but did not want to dismiss the wider role of the Standards Committee. 

Page 2



STANDARDS COMMITTEE - 08/09/11 10B 
 

 

 
It was suggested that further comments on this matter be sent to the 
Monitoring Officer by the 30th September, 2011, following which a meeting be 
arranged with the Chairman and Vice-Chairman to draw up draft Terms of 
Reference and for them to be submitted back to the next meeting for 
consideration. 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the contents of the report be noted. 
 
(2)  That any comments be forwarded to the Monitoring Officer by the 
30th September, 2011, following which a meeting be arranged with the 
Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Standards Committee to draw up draft 
Terms of Reference and for them to be submitted back to the next meeting for 
consideration. 
 

B11 COUNCILLOR JUDITH DALTON  
 

 Consideration was given to a report presented by Richard Waller, Senior 
Manager, Legal and Electoral Services, which set out the alleged 
circumstances that led to an assessment and resultant review hearing relating 
to Councillor Judith Dalton, who was a member of the Council and a member of 
Anston Parish Council. 
 
The review panel directed that Councillor Dalton should undergo further 
training and directed the Monitoring Officer to write to Councillor Dalton to 
arrange further training on the code, specifically with regard to personal and 
prejudicial interests.   
 
Following receipt of the review panel’s decision notice and the Monitoring 
Officer’s letter, Councillor Dalton wrote to him and ultimately asked the 
Committee to reconsider its decision in light of this information, as she felt 
strongly that her good intentions had led to her reputation being called into 
question and that she should have the opportunity to refute the allegation.   
 
The review panel’s decision to direct the Monitoring Officer to carry out certain 
actions was irrevocable and could only be challenged by way of judicial review.   
 
The assessment and review panels’ decisions were currently in the Standards 
Committee’s pages of the website.  Members may, therefore, wish to consider 
whether these decisions should be removed from the website in light of the 
new information that Councillor Dalton had referred the matter to the Parish 
Council for a decision and had neither chaired, spoke nor voted at the meeting. 
 
Whilst being somewhat sympathetic to Councillor Dalton’s situation, the 
Committee believed that the decision of the review panel was right that she 
would benefit from some training to improve her understanding of the 
principles of the Code, but was in agreement that the decision notices from the 
assessment and review hearings be removed from the Council’s website. 

 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the contents of the report be noted and the Monitoring 
Officer be directed to advise Councillor Judith Dalton that the decision of the 
26th May, 2011 review panel was final. 
 
 

Page 3



11B  STANDARDS COMMITTEE - 08/09/11 
  

 

 

(2)  That, in light of the new information, the decisions of the assessment and 
review panels of 24th February and 26th May, 2011 be removed from the 
website, but in the best interests of Councillor Dalton training should still be 
offered. 
 

B12 MR. NEIL FULCHER  
 

 Consideration was given to a report presented by Richard Waller, Senior 
Manager, Legal and Electoral Services, which set out the circumstances that 
led to a referral to the Standards Board for England who in turn referred it for 
investigation by an Ethical Standards Officer relating to Mr. Neil Fulcher. 
 
The Ethical Standards Officer found Mr. Fulcher not to be in breach of the Code 
in relation to Councillor Bradley’s allegation that he had withheld from the 
members of the Parish Council legal advice given by Mr. Mumford, but in 
breach in relation to Mr. Waller’s allegation.  In the course of his investigation 
the Ethical Standards Officer also found evidence of other breaches of the Code 
in relation to Councillor Bradley, Mr. Mumford and another Council officer, Mr. 
K. Battersby.   
 
The case was heard by the First-tier Tribunal on 19th July, 2010 on the basis 
of written submissions as Mr. Fulcher had informed the tribunal that he would 
not be attending the hearing and as a result was suspended from membership 
of Bramley Parish Council for a period of six months.   
 
Mr. Fulcher then appealed to the Upper Tribunal on a number of grounds the 
majority of which were dismissed.  However, the Upper Tribunal did find that 
the First-tier Tribunal had fallen into error as in its statement of reasons it 
linked the allegations in relation to Mr. Mumford and Mr. Battersby with 
Mr. Waller’s complaint rather than treating them as separate allegations upon 
which it was required to make specific findings and give reasons on the basis of 
the written evidence before it. 
 
However, as Mr. Fulcher had already served his six months’ suspension at the 
time the Upper Tribunal heard the appeal, the tribunal and Mr. Fulcher 
considered little would be achieved from reducing the period of suspension to 
five months.   
 
Resolved:-  That the contents of the report be noted. 
 

B13 MR. ALAN HARSTON  
 

 The Committee paid tribute to Mr. Alan Harston and thanked him for all his 
help and support.  They wished him well in his retirement. 
 

B14 DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING  

 
 Resolved:-  That the next meeting of the Standards Committee take place on 

Thursday, 13th October, 2011 at 2.00 p.m. 
 

 

Page 4



 
 

1. Meeting: Standards Committee 

2. Date: 10 November 2011 

3. Title: Standards Committee Terms of Reference 

4. Directorate: Chief Executive’s 

 
 

5. Summary 
 

On 8th September the Committee resolved that committee members might write to 
the monitoring officer with suggestions for changes to the Committee’s current terms 
of reference, which are appended as Appendix A.  The monitoring officer was then to 
meet with the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Committee to discuss the suggestions.   
 
Following that meeting and in light of the discussion, the monitoring officer revised 
the Committee’s terms of reference, which are attached for members’ consideration 
at Appendix B.   
 
The following suggestions were considered:- 
 

Membership  
 

• Reduce the number of members of the Committee but maintain the current 
balance in favour of independent members. 

 

• Maintain the current balance in favour of independent members of a 
committee composed of fewer members by restricting the membership to 6 
independent members (including chair and vice-chair), 3 elected members 
and 2 parish councillors – this would also permit 5 member panels comprised 
of 3 independents, 1 elected member and one parish councillor. 

 

• The composition of the Standards Committee could be: 
 

o 10 members comprised of 8 independent members and 2 elected 
members in order to maximise public confidence in the Committee and 
its role; or 

 
o 10 members comprised of 6 independent members and 4 elected 

members; or 
 
o left as it currently is (except for removing the requirement for town and 

parish council members) as this works well. 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL - REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 4Page 5



• The number of members of the Committee should be 13 and they should 
choose the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Committee. 

 

• Members of the Committee should be totally independent and elected 
members should not sit on the Committee. 

 
N.B.  The Committee is currently comprised of 15 members comprised of eight 
independent members, 3 elected members and 3 parish council members.   
 

Frequency of meetings  
 

• The Committee should meet bi-monthly. 
 

• Assessment and review panels should continue to meet as and when 
required. 

 
Code of Conduct 

 

• Use the statutory code as the framework for a voluntary code but consolidate 
some of its provisions. 

 

• Base the voluntary code on the statutory code with appropriate amendments 
to reflect the provisions of the Localism Bill. 

 

• Open a dialogue with parish councils if there is widespread support for a 
voluntary code administered by Rotherham Borough Council. 

 
N.B. Letter circulated to parish councils  
 

Complaints 
 

• Assessment and review panels should be composed of: 
 

o 3 independent members with the remaining 3 independent members 
available to review assessment panel decisions; or 

 
o 2 independent members and 1 elected member with 1 of the 

independent members taking the chair. 
 

• Develop the complaints procedure, in particular by strengthening and 
balancing the preliminary stage of the procedure by permitting limited 
investigation of the facts, so that the sub-committee that considers the 
complaint has a better understanding.  

 

• Investigation of complaints should follow current practice suitably modified to 
reflect changes in the law. 

 
N.B. Standards Committee Manual will require revision.   

 

Page 6



Sanctions 
 

• For breach of the voluntary code, the sanctions could be: 
 

o  public admonishment of a parish councillor or elected member;  
o in the most serious cases not involving failure to declare a personal 

and prejudicial interest reduction or suspension of an elected member’s 
personal allowances (subject, to approval of the full Council). 

 

• Parish councils should not be eligible for Quality Status if a member is found 
to be in breach of the voluntary code. 

 

• The right to ask for a review of an assessment panel’s decision should be 
available only in limited circumstances, for example where new and significant 
information has been received after the panel made its decision. 

 

• The complaints procedure should address repetitive, frivolous and vexatious 
complaints. 

 
Alternative arrangements 

 

• The option of a sub-regional shared standards committee would only work 
with a common code of conduct. 

 

• Keep the audit and standard committees separate. 
 

• Joint arrangements with other local authorities are not recommended. 
 

• Adoption of the Sheffield proposal is not recommended, not least because 
officers should be acting under the Committee’s direction. 

 
Town and parish councils 

 

• Rotherham Borough Council’s policy on charging parish councils to administer 
a standards regime requires early resolution. 

 

• Concentrate on borough council until firm commitment from all town and 
parish councils. 

 

• Remove references to Standards for England and town and parish councils. 
 

Miscellaneous 
 

• The terms of reference should include a requirement to review and inform 
Rotherham Borough Council of any weaknesses or failings in any council 
systems and recommend actions. 

Page 7



 

• Rotherham Borough Council’s “Right to speak” policy should apply to 
meetings of the Standards Committee.  

 

• Most of the current terms of reference would still be relevant. 
 
 

6. Recommendations 
 
IT IS RECOMMENDED that members consider and approve the proposed 
amendments to the Committee’s terms of reference, subject to any conflicting 
legislative requirements following the enactment of the Localism Bill.  

Page 8



7. Proposals and details 

 

Please see paragraph 5. 

 

8. Finance 
 
There are no financial implications arsing directly from this report.   
 
9 Risks and Uncertainties 
 
Until the Localism Bill becomes law, the direction of the standards regime will remain 
unclear.   
 
10 Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 
The Council is dedicated to high standards of conduct and will be under a duty to 
promote and maintain such standards by members and co-opted members following 
the Bill becoming law.   
 
11 Background Papers and Consultation 
 
Localism Bill  
 
12 Contact: Richard Waller, Senior Manager, Legal and Electoral Services 
Telephone: (01709) 8254456 
E-mail: richard.waller@rotherham.gov.uk  

 

Page 9



APPENDIX A

Page 10



APPENDIX A

Page 11



Appendix B 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE – TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
 

1. To promote and maintain high standards of conduct by the members and co-
opted members of the Council. 

 

2. To assist members and co-opted members of the Council to observe the 
Council’s voluntary Code of Conduct. 

 

3. To advise the Council on the adoption and revision of its voluntary Code of 
Conduct, taking into account any relevant guidance and existing good practice 
within the Council. 

 

4. To monitor the operation of the voluntary Code of Conduct and recommend 
revisions as appropriate, and to ensure that the Code is fully understood and 
applied throughout the Council. 

 

5. To advise, train or arrange to train members and co-opted members of the 
Council on matters relating to the voluntary Code of Conduct. 

 

6. To give dispensation to Members and Co-opted Members of the Council in 
accordance with any statutory requirements and relevant guidance.   

 

7. [Not used]  

 

8. To review arrangements as to the declarations of interest of members, co-
opted members and officers, to monitor the operation of such arrangements and 
to offer advice on their application. 

 

9. To review and recommend such other protocols, local codes and guidance as 
may be considered desirable to build upon the rules contained within the voluntary 
Code of Conduct whilst not forming part of it. 

 

10. To establish Sub-Committees:- 

 

(a) to carry out the initial assessment of written allegations that members 
of the Council have failed to comply with the voluntary Code of 
Conduct; 

Page 12



(b) to review, subject to the provisions on the right of review contained in 
the Local Assessment Criteria, at the request of the person making the 
allegation any decision to take no action; and 

(c)  to receive the report of the Monitoring Officer (or person nominated by 
him) into any complaint referred to the Monitoring Officer and, following 
consideration of such report to take such actions or make such 
recommendations to the full Council that  

 

11. [Not used]  

 

12. [Not used]  

 

13. [Not used]  

 

14. [Not used]  

 

15. To establish and monitor the operation of Complaints Procedures and 
Whistleblowing Procedures. 

 

16. To review the application of the Council’s Standing Orders, Financial 
Regulations, contract arrangements and other such provisions. 

 

17. To review and comment upon the Council’s procedures and Codes of Practice 
relating to public access to information, confidentiality and arrangements for data 
protection. 

 

18. To review the procedures for appointment of Council representatives to 
outside bodies and to make recommendations to the Council or the Cabinet as 
necessary. 

 

19. To consider reports arising from external inspections, audit investigations, 
Ombudsman investigations, legal challenges and other sources which cast doubt 
on the honesty or integrity of the Council, its members or officers, and to 
recommend action to the full Council or Cabinet as appropriate. 

 

20. To consider and offer advice and guidance as appropriate on other matters 
which in the view of the Committee or the Council’s Monitoring Officer could have 
a bearing on public perceptions of the honesty and integrity of the Council, its 
members, co-opted members and officers. 

 

Page 13



21. To consider and make recommendations on such other matters as the 
Committee itself thinks appropriate or which are referred for attention by the 
Council or the Cabinet which further the aim of promoting and maintaining the 
highest standards of conduct within the authority. 

 

In these Terms of Reference “co-opted member of the Council” means a person who 
is not a member of the Council, but who:- 

 

(a) is a member of any Committee or Sub-Committee of the Council, or 

 

(b) is a member of and represents the Council on any Joint Committee or Joint 
Sub-Committee of the Council, 

 

and who is entitled to vote on any question which falls to be decided at any meeting 
of that Committee or Sub-Committee. 

 

 

Page 14



 
 

1. Meeting: Standards Committee 

2. Date: 10 November 2011 

3. Title: Voluntary Code of Conduct 

4. Directorate: Chief Executive’s Directorate 

 
 

5. Summary 
 
Since the Committee last met on 8th September, it seems that the Government may 
have had a change of heart and there may be a statutory code of conduct after all.  
The Bill is set for its 3rd Reading in the House of Lords on 31 October.   
 
A press statement on the Bill, issued by the Association of Council Secretaries and 
Solicitors (ACSeS), is reproduced at Appendix A, the ACSeS commentary on the 
standards clauses in the Bill together with the ACSeS draft model code of conduct is 
reproduced at Appendix B and a copy of the statutory model code of conduct is 
reproduced at Appendix C.   
 
ACSeS anticipate: 
 

• local authorities being obliged to adopt a code of conduct; 

• the adopted code will contain provisions recommended by the Local 
Government Association and the National Association of Local Councils 
respectively plus provisions particular to each authority; 

• the LGA and NALC will be required to review their respective codes as 
appropriate. 

 
The ACSeS code of conduct is a paler and vaguer version of the statutory code.  
 

6. Recommendations 
 
It is recommended that the Committee notes the apparent change in the 
Government’s position, and the ACSeS draft voluntary code of conduct as the 
possible basis of a model voluntary code of conduct.   
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL - REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 5Page 15



7.  Proposals and details 

Please see paragraph 5.   

 

8. Finance 
 
There are no financial implications arsing directly from this report.   
 
9 Risks and Uncertainties 
 
Until the Localism Bill becomes law, the direction of the standards regime will remain 
unclear.   
 
10 Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 
The Council is dedicated to high standards of conduct and will be under a duty to 
promote and maintain such standards by members and co-opted members following 
the Bill becoming law.   
 
11 Background Papers and Consultation 
 
The Localism Bill 
 
12 Contact: Richard Waller, Senior Manager, Legal & Electoral Services 
Telephone: (01709) 8254456 
E-mail: richard.waller@rotherham.gov.uk  
 
 

Page 16



APPENDIX A

Page 17



APPENDIX A

Page 18



APPENDIX B

Page 19



APPENDIX B

Page 20



APPENDIX B

Page 21



APPENDIX B

Page 22



APPENDIX B

Page 23



APPENDIX B

Page 24



APPENDIX B

Page 25



APPENDIX B

Page 26



APPENDIX B

Page 27



APPENDIX C

Page 28



APPENDIX C

Page 29



APPENDIX C

Page 30



APPENDIX C

Page 31



APPENDIX C

Page 32



APPENDIX C

Page 33



APPENDIX C

Page 34



APPENDIX C

Page 35



 
 

1. Meeting: Standards Committee 

2. Date: 10 November 2011 

3. Title: Bribery Act 2010 

4. Directorate: Chief Executive’s Directorate 

 
 

5. Summary 
 

Introduction 

The Bribery Act 2010 came into force on 1st July 2011 and consolidated the law on 
bribery.  It replaced the offences at common law and under the Prevention of 
Corruption Acts 1889 – 1916 with two general offences: the first deals with bribery 
and the second deals with being bribed. The basis of a bribe is an intention to 
induce improper conduct.   

The Bribery Act is not concerned with fraud, theft, books and record offences, 
Companies Act offences, money laundering offences or competition law.   

A bribe has three elements: (i) that the person making the payment makes it to the 
agent of the other person with whom he is dealing; (ii) that he makes it to that 
person knowing that that person is acting as the agent of the other person with 
whom he is dealing; and (iii) that he fails to disclose to the other person with whom 
he is dealing that he has made that payment to the person whom he knows to be 
the other person's agent.   

Offences 

The 2010 Act creates offences of –  

• offering, promising or giving of a bribe (active bribery) and the requesting, 
agreeing to receive or accepting of a bribe (passive bribery); 

• bribery of foreign public officials; and 

• failure to prevent a bribe being paid on an organisation’s behalf.   

Active and passive bribes  

A person commits an offence (i) by offering, promising or giving a financial or other 
advantage to another person where he intends to bring about the improper 
performance by another person of a relevant function or activity or to reward such 
improper performance; or (ii) he knows or believes that the acceptance of the 
advantage offered, promised or given in itself constitutes the improper performance 
of a relevant function.   

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL - REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 6Page 36



“Improper performance” means performance which amounts to a breach of an 
expectation that a person will act in good faith, impartially, or in accordance with a 
position of trust.  The offence applies to both the public and private sector, including 
bribery relating to any function of a public nature, connected with a business, 
performed in the course of a person’s employment or performed on behalf of 
another company or another body of persons.   

In deciding whether a function or activity has been performed improperly, the test is 
what a reasonable person in the UK would expect in relation to the performance of 
that function or activity. 

Failure to prevent a bribe 

Failure to prevent a bribe is a new offence which can be committed by commercial 
organisations, which includes for this purpose a local authority.  The offence is 
committed where a person associated with the organisation bribes another person 
intending to obtain or retain business or an advantage in the conduct of business 
for that organisation.   

An organisation has a defence however if it can prove on the balance of probability 
that despite an incident of bribery it had adequate procedures in place to prevent 
persons associated with it from bribing.   

A person is associated with an organisation where the person “performs services” 
for or on behalf of the organisation.  The word “person” is given a broad meaning 
and may be an individual, a company or unincorporated association, such as a 
community group.  Agents and subsidiaries are included as well as employees who 
are presumed to be performing services for their employer.   

The question of association is however ultimately to be determined from all of the 
relevant circumstances and not simply by reference to the nature of the relationship 
between the person concerned and the organisation.   

Consequently, contractors could be “associated” persons when performing services 
on the organisation’s behalf, and in certain circumstances suppliers could be too if 
they are providing services and not just supplying goods.   

In the case of supply chains involving several organisations, or a contract with a 
main contractor and several sub-contractors, the Act’s reach is considered to 
extend no further than immediate contractual relationships.  The risk inherent in 
such arrangements may be mitigated however by requesting the counterpart of 
each party in the chain to adopt a similar approach to bribery prevention with its 
counterpart.   

The new offence is in addition to the other bribery offences that may be committed 
by persons who are running an organisation and considered to be the “directing 
mind” or will of the organisation.   

In order to be liable for failure to prevent a bribe, an organisation must have failed 
to prevent conduct that would be an active or passive bribe, but a person need not 
have been convicted of an active or passive bribe before the offence of failing to 
prevent such conduct is engaged.  Nevertheless, the prosecution must still be able 
to prove beyond reasonable doubt an active or passive bribery offence before the 
failure offence is triggered.   

Page 37



Whether an organisation’s bribery prevention procedures are adequate depends on 
the facts of each case, including consideration of the level of control over the 
activities of the associated person and the degree of risk that requires mitigation.   

Guidance  

At the heart of the Act is the core principle of proportionality, which essentially 
requires an organisation to have in place procedures that are proportional to the 
level of risk of bribery that it faces.   

Guidance issued by the Secretary of State for Justice under the Act contains details 
of procedures an organisation can put in place to prevent bribing on its behalf.  
These are informed by six principles, which are set out at Appendix A to this report.   
 

Rotherham Borough Council 
 
The Council has a number of measures in place designed to prevent incidents of 
bribery and fraud all of which embrace the Secretary of State’s six principles.  
Internal Audit colleagues are currently updating the Council’s Anti-fraud Strategy & 
Corruption Policy to reflect the requirements of the Act and will be making certain 
recommendations to the Audit Committee shortly.  In addition to the anti-fraud policy, 
there are a number of other council documents that will require updating, for 
example Standing Orders, Financial Regulations, the Code of Official Conduct and 
model contract clauses.   
 
 

6. Recommendations 
 
IT IS RECOMMENDED that – 
 

1. Members are requested to note this report. 
 
2. Members are requested to approve the monitoring officer and internal 

audit manager devising and implementing a joint programme of work to 
refresh and update council documents and procedures in light of the 
coming into force of the Bribery Act 2010 and guidance on the Act 
published by the Secretary of State for Justice.   

 
3. Members are requested to approve referral of this report to the Audit 

Committee.   
 

Page 38



7.  Proposals and details 

Please see paragraph 5. 

 

8. Finance 
 
Other than officer time, there are no direct financial implications from this report.   
 
 
9 Risks and Uncertainties 
 
Having properly documented policies and procedures to guard against bribery 
reduces the risk of the Council being found to have failed to prevent bribery.   
 
 
10 Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 
Guarding against incidents of bribery safeguards the use of public funds and accords 
with the Council’s Corporate Plan and Community Strategy.   
 
11 Background Papers and Consultation 
 
Bribery Act 2010 
Guidance on the 2010 Act published by the Secretary of State for Justice  
 
12 Contact: richard.waller@rotherham.gov.uk 
Telephone: (01709) 823121 
E-mail: Richard.waller@rotherham.gov.uk  
 

Page 39



APPENDIX  
 

The Bribery Act 2010  
 

Guidance of Secretary of State for Justice 
 

Principles  
 

Principle 1: Proportionate procedures 
 
A commercial organisation’s procedures to prevent bribery by persons associated 
with it are proportionate to the bribery risks it faces and to the nature, scale and 
complexity of the commercial organisation’s activities.  They are also clear, practical, 
accessible, effectively implemented and enforced.   
 
Principle 2: Top-level commitment 
 
The top-level management of a commercial organisation (be it a board of directors, 
the owners or any other equivalent body or person) are committed to preventing 
bribery by persons associated with it.  They foster a culture within the organisation in 
which bribery is never acceptable. 
 
Principle 3: Risk assessment 
 
The commercial organisation assesses the nature and extent of its exposure to 
potential external and internal risks of bribery on its behalf by persons associated 
with it.  The assessment is periodic, informed and documented.   
 
Principle 4: Due diligence 
 
The commercial organisation applies due diligence procedures, taking a 
proportionate and risk based approach, in respect of persons who perform or will 
perform services fro or on behalf of the organisation, in order to mitigate identified 
bribery risks.   
 
Principle 5: Communication (including training) 
 
The commercial organisation seeks to ensure that its bribery prevention policies and 
procedures are embedded and understood throughout the organisation through 
internal and external communication, including training, that is proportionate to the 
risks it faces.   
 
Principle 6: Monitoring and review 
 
The commercial organisation monitors and reviews procedures designed to prevent 
bribery by persons associated with it and makes improvements where necessary. 
 
 

Page 40


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 8th September, 2011 (herewith)
	4 Standards Committee Terms of Reference (report herewith)
	Terms of Reference Appendix A.doc
	Terms of Reference Appendix B

	5 Voluntary Code of Conduct (report herewith)
	Voluntary Code of Conduct Appendix A
	Voluntary Code of Conduct Appendix B
	Voluntary Code of Conduct Appendix C

	6 Bribery Act 2010 (report herewith)

